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PREFACE

This memoir is the result of a series of tape-recorded interviews

conducted for the Oral History Research Office

by  Peter A. Corning with M. Allen Pond
in  Bethesda, Maryland during 1966,
Mr. Pond has read the transcript, and has made

only minor corrections and emendations. The reader is asked to bear in
mind, therefore, that he is reading a transcript of the spoken rather
than the written word.

The memoir may be read, quoted from and cited only by serious
research scholars accredited for purposes of research by Columbia
University; and further, this memoir must be read in such place as is made
available for purposes of research by Columbia University. In addition,
two copies will be deposited in the Social Security Archive, to be held
under the same restrictions. No reproduction of this memoir, either in
whole or in part, may be made by microphoto, typewriter, photostat, or any
other device, except by Mr. Pond 5 S

heirs, legal representatives, or assigns.

Approved: )\j\_, \ (QLQQQ/U\ @
Date: 20 M/ 1947




LH -1 Interview # 1

Interview with Allen

-
(@)
)
Q.

by Peter A. Corning

Washington, D. C. February 17, 1966

d: Can you recall how you fir vecame involved with the issue of

3
0
ct

health insurance?

fond: I had an academic interest in health insurance pProblems back
in the late '40s. I had been a student and then a faculty member
in the Yale department of public health under Professor Winslow,

and he had gotten me lﬂti Sxﬂ.ln the field, although I'd had no

speelific activities in the '30s and up until January
of -2 when I ca u he ¢ 1blic Health Service. I went b 0& to
-MJ
New Haven in '4u a&&:nhé nd bot mildly interested and somenexpusure.
I came back into the Public Health Service, and for the first: five
years, starting in '48, I was assistant chief sanitary engineer and
in the engineering business and had no occasion to be concerned,
although I read some ab.. t Lt

Or

In 1953 in Aucust I was metalled to work with bhester'ntefer,
Who was special assistant for health and medical affairs to Mrs.
Hobby. I went to the Secretary's office on a temporary detail that
lasted ultimately for almost ten years. In the fall of 1953, when
the Eisenhower administration began to plan its health legislative
program for the legislative year 1954, I was asked to .consider various
approaches to the health insurance broblem which could be carried out
wilithout getting a big commitment on the part of the federal govern=-
ment, aﬁd;[n reviewing earlier Work, we came across the broposal that
Congressman Wolveiton of New Jersey had introduced into the House

some years previously to establish a reinsurance prograd.

Q: Let me intefuupt you at this point. PFirst, this came, sort of to




Pond - 2
fill in the scene here, subsequent to a very heated debate over the*

Wagner-Murray-Dingell proposal.

Pond:
8x/Yes, but quite & while after.

Q: That's right. But by that time the issue was dead.
Pond:  Por all practical purposes.

Q: Nonetheless, there was a2 Trecognition on the part of the Eisenhower
administration that something more needed to be done in this area of

paying for health costs.

Pond: I think there was a general feeling that unless there was sub-
stantial stimulation of the private health imsurance budiness, not
only that carried on by insurance companies but also by Blue Cross,
Blue Shield and group practide prepayment plans, that there would not
be the kind of universal coverage which would be necessary if some
form of federal insurance wasn't to come into being. The reinsurance
in i1ts emrly stages
idea had attractiveness/primerily because it could be designed to
help spread the risk of covering poor risks. At that time insurance
companies were loath to provide coverage for people who weren't in
first-rate physical conditiong. They were quite reluctant. They'd
had no experience at it really. They were quite reluctant to cover
the aged or to cover people with disabilities. And the cagcept of
the reinsurance plan was to try to make it possible for the government

to set up a system that would protect the insurance companies and

Blue Cross-Blue Shield plans against losses resulting from their




Pondii="9

experimentation in new forms of coverage or in extended coverage.

Q: I wonder if you can recall now, or whether you were close enough

to the discussions to know, how it was that the thinking evolved within
tne Department that 1t was necessary for the federal government to do
something and that there was a recognition of the private insurance
companies and ¥oluntary insurance agencies would not do this without
some sort of stimulus. Did¥this evolve as a result of a series of

discussions or by consultation or advisory council,..?

Pond: During the campaign in 1952 President Eisenhower had made some
statements about the need for better coverage of the public against
the risks from illness, but he stressed the need to preserve the
private approach, 't o7 you can find some of that material in the
history of the 1952 campaign. At any rate, this was conslidered by
Mrs. ﬂobb% and by members of the staff ef the White House)to be an
issue of considerable significanceg - ':Ehe fact that I was put on the
Job of trying to find some kind of a proposal thap could be launched
-- w,_#)j‘a‘m“im‘\gmr W - -
for practically no costnindicates that they considered this of suf-
ficlient publie importaagjf t&giiri to have something in their health
(V.Y

pro *\'4. Pres
D o, thot teeew=—spexc sending up to Congress in 1954,

Q: Can you by any chance remember any specific discussions you had

.

th Mrs. Hobby. 2

Pond: Nelson Rockefeller was Under Secretary at this time, and he
brought in to help frame the legislative program, Gscar Riebhausen, who
is a lawyer in New York, add Roswell Perkins, who is a lawyer in

New York, who later was Assistant Secretary of Health, Education and




Welfare, and Mr. Arthur Jones, who was with the Rockefeller Brothers
rn—ﬁew;furb. I remember many discussions participated in by a large
number of people, and they rather liked this reinsurance approach--

T think for two reasons. One is that they thought it could be usefiul
in strengthening the voluntary health insuran ce movement. And
second, quite clearly, they were attracted by the fact it wasn't going
to cost very much)because'uuaﬂdministration was in the posture of

trying to reduce‘QEderal intervention in private affairs and business

and also trying to get the budget down.

Q: I take it then that you, in instituting a search for worthwhile
proposals, came across thisffolverton bill simply amongfeny things
that crossed your desk. You don't recall now how that proposal
came to you, whether it was simply something that got to you by

a Secretarye....

Pond: I <e know that I put out a dragnet in the Department for
previous bills that had been introduced, most of which had never had
any serious consideration, and we reviewed all of them with the aid
of staff, ea&:[ttggéan to be clear that this was going to have some
favorable reception. As time went on, in the fa2ll of '53, we tended

Lo Zere. in - on ik

Q: Did you ever find out where the Wolverton proposal came from?

Pond: Yes. I believe it had its origins with a fellow by the name
of Van Stepnwick, now dead, who was one of the pioneers in the
Blue Cross movement and who, by the time he got to know Congressman

Wolverton well, was running the Blue Cross plan in Philadelphia.




recollection is that it was Van who had dreamed this one up, but

Q: That's something we might pursue. )id you in looking over all of

these various proposals single out this particular cne, or did you

als or haXf a dozen proposals
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Pond: I can't remember. I think the way we handled it was in a series
discussinns,aad.lhis ong/with the limits that had been set for it-=<=
as something that would promote privat e health insurance and wouldn't
725 the only one that had any apparent viability. [This ks

my recollection.

Q: In terms of internal administeative structure here, who did you

revort to?

Pond: I reported to Dr. Chester Keifer, who was special assistant to

the Secretary for Health and Medical Affairs.

Q: You mentioned Rockefeller , Reiphausen and Roswell Ferkins and
Arthur Jones. Were ymwe they people that you consulted with?

1153,

Pond: They came in in Novembeghand worked fairly closely with us.

Rod Perkins had come in earlier, and he worked on the Social Securlty

Amendwenis
L\ (i e

as o Mé* g)
to dokand was then 9u%sequoﬁﬁ&9—eg@vtnte&-ﬁeaéeﬂanﬁ—@eeretary

d.lﬂdevelopﬂf what was a fairly broad legislative program in 1954.

He 'sdbaa19445\1 Qes l{p@hwsma Ay sbod éa4ai}aA1.

1954, That was what he was primarily brought in




Pond = 6
‘ He helped in developing the 1954 Amendments to the Hill-Burton Act which were
included in an omnibus bill that also contained the reinsurance proposale I can't
remember other detailf but I know he worked on the vocational rehabilitation amend-

ments.

Q: In other words, there was really a package that involved this whole field.

What happened to this reinsurance proposal?

Pond: The bill was ®xax drafted and cleared through the Executive Branch, There
were discussions in the drafting of it with our consultant group of eight people,
who were brought in from the insurance industry -- the Blue Crose®, Blue Shield
and I think the group practice prepayment field, My recollection is hazy as to the
exact composition of the group because I was involved in developing the Federal
‘ Employee Health Insurance Act at the same time, which also involved the use of

consultantse
Q: Do you remember who these peole wire?

Pond: I have a fair recollectione I can't give you all the names, but the group
involved Mr, Henry Beers, later the president of Agtna; Mr. C. Manton Eddy, vice=-
president of the Connecticut General Life Insurance Company; Mr. Henry Smith, then
a vice-president of Equitable. There was a man from Blue Shield who at th‘!a‘c time
was running the Mjchigan Blue Shield plan. There was Mr. James. E. Stuart, who at
that time was director Xk of the Cincinnati “lue Cross plan., There was a fellow

from the Lincoln Natimal Life Insurance Comapny in Fort Wayne, Indiana.

Q: Hgw abo t Reinie Hohaus? Was he in?
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‘ Pond: Reinie Hohaus did not come into this picture until Marion

Folsom became Secretary in August, 1955.
H )W come?
nd: He was working at that time #¥ith Social Security matters, but

\u..‘ was ner \m'ﬁ\& n m*\u fenakiamw pre

posa).
b4 ~ Yy N e ~ v 3 Dt 3 o “f
R e e, He was a very close personal iriena oi '

Y B e e Al ) e e LR el Bl A TBTT e R Ee 2 fnn %
Folsom's and that's how he happened to come 1nto the picture m \%{'
) L

—
'
HS)

'“lbt
Pond: think he was not well-known toj us é.t that time. We had-

(2 ¥
' ‘1&;—% advice from various ':Jeophe] a uj ho would be useful in this
\hb'

rarticular overation, and wees’zaroup that I mentioned-
were three others on it, but I can't recall who they were.

- =

any rate, they worked with us on the drafting of the bill.

Q: Were they called together specifically for this?

Pond: They were brought down to Washington on a regular basis

1

. about a month--two o
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): And when you say "us'....




Pond: The staff of the Drrice of the Secretary.

Q: And you were heading

Pond: I was sort of the staff guy on it. Ted Ellenbogen did the
~ . - ‘ - 1 ~ ~
drafting. He was ove?—eé the ?eneral ounsel’'s Gfll TP U e S o)

effller played a role in it. Mrs. Hobby did. Dr, K

Oscar Reibhausen did.

the

Pond: She went all out for it once ow® decision was made that we

needed something.

Q: Was there a great deal of controversy over this question of whether

or not something was needed or was it something that was generally
accepted?

Pond: It was generally accepte@ I thing in the Administration that
Yo Uingress
something was needed, that you couldn't go up,with a health program
edicd
that disavowed any interest in the payment c¥ the costs of,care.

But there was also clear evideiace that'umabdministration was solidly
committed to support a voluntary effort and that it hed no intentions

of going toward a tax-supported system of whatever nature.

b

Q: What about Mrs., Hobby as a person? I don't know how=meeh you feel

dOK b i :
o personalities or how well you knew her.

Pond: I knew her very welly amd mrdd hen.
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1s hase 2
. Q: One of the things we encourage is ®w=t people talk about other

» She was sincerely interested in trying to develop a
health legislative program that would be a credit to the Administra—
tion. I'm convinced she felt that there had to be something in the
health insurance field., She certainly supported it XEEEEEEEEXY:
vigorously once it was decided as the package. H#kmr 8he testified
or it; she spoke widely fif 1t; she tried to intere_st outside
And s ard
groups in supporting itgntried to get the AMA to support it, which

the bat/ before it knew any-

Hh

1t didn't. It cbjected to it right of

A S R St R
olln about 17T.

‘ Q: would things have been different if they had supported it?
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2: What about the reaction of the $nsurance company people to #&his?

Pond: The Fresident himself got involved in trying to get the insurance
indusgtry to support this mm® proposal. They very reluctantly tooEJ

in effect,at least from the pu

olie standpcinﬁithe no=o0ovosition
vosition. I think many of the individual companies were opposed to
1t, and a2 lot of the people in the industry saw it as an entering

X
wedge or as a fraud. S ORI b e e ) Thor?,

who was head of the Life Insurance Association of Americ%’ah@ tried

to help out in this particular situation,




Q: Even by comparison
Murray-Dinge
Pond:

Pond

10
-

with the alternatives,

thing worse.

such as the Wagner-
wouldn't work,and therefore it would lead to scme-
Q: You mean that once the thing had passed the Congress,
a recognition that more had to be done; and if
this would provide...
Pond: Yes. @&nd they
feinsurame

it was
that failed,
y also, I

Pl

)

then
tnink)were reason

bly convinced that
tiew wouldn't work to handle the thughest problems that existed--
in the population at large.

Q2 Didn't this

that standpoint, and it would push people to
mak

notably, the coverage of low-income groups, both the aged and others
operated system.

It would be looked upon as a fraud from
This is my recollection of

demand a federally
heir gttitude.
tend to discourage you? If the people who had to
the thing work were skeptical of it...7%
Pond: This was not all of them. Some c*~deem thought 1t would be
Bees useful,
Q: Did the divisie n have any particular significance
who favored and those who opposed or who were coo
Pond: I don't know.

between those
o vl oW e
It was generally the spaller companies
were opposed, aaé—ﬁh&ssiin fact, we thought

than it would help the big

co

) Pfoqu
xupa}lj_ €S,

WOl
h

m

tha
uld kelp thenm

moxre
The big companies had

the
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ward, who still is with AMA, denounced the reinsurance

plan before Mrs. Hobby really had had a chance to explain it. He
announced that the AMA opposed it.
Q: What was his reasoning?
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Pond: Obviously.

Q: And what hapypened then?
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Pond: We went ahead with the bill an

the Senate and the House, and the House decided to move first. The
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House Interstate and Foreign Commerce Comm

and got a rule on it. It went to the floor in April of 1954,
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ne President, I take it, was brought into this when the plan
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was pretty well articulated, and he was responsive to 1it.
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Pond: He was responsive to it and supporte
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Te was public reaction. I don't remember the de-

public reaction
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~-some favorable press d some unfavorable.
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Pond: Well, this kind of conference was always held

o

uring the years

that I was in the Secvetar*ss éffice with various outside groups at
Tresi “m 'y +o Qenqress
=

about the time that the alth Message wen't forwarq. Thejd bring

: ; ﬁngﬁumy : R :
kg taennogpltaL Association, representative

Py

the hospital com-

)

O

0

munity, the medical community, the public health community and
other groups who had a professional or public interest in the issue.

We had chart talks and all sorts of presentations,l - B e =

Q: So it was customary to bring these people inand Bivake 9C you
would bring them in individually.
Pond: We'd bring them in in groups. We might not mix them all - up.
Sometimes we did. But we brought the AMA in alone because 1t was

a large organization)and important.

Q: Incidentally, to digress for a second, I take it that later, when
the medicare proposal became an official administration proposal

nsul

in '61l, that the AMA wouldn't come anymore, that this kind of co

tation wasn't possible.

Pond: I'm not familiar with the details of that because I wasn' ©

intimately involved. I stayed in the Orfice of the Secretary until
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not toe be trusted. That's a fact of life.

Q: Conversely, wouldn't you say that the Eisenhower people when they

came in took the same attitude toward the Social Security people?

As time went on, however, the
TS

more and more on people like Dewws

Falk and Wilbur Cohen, both of whom were in Soclal Security, and Ida

=4

Well, I think I started you off on the discussion of h¢j*h
m¥he & um\so»u' AdwnisVeadions |

e I 2 Sl YRl i LS B e ’ o had heot ma S o
;_Llsul‘&;;cenn’ill’:;“ you mey o¥r may not have had before. iNnls Was To

Q: I will be talking to other people who also wereAnvolved in this.

Rod Perkins is one of the people on the 1list.
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Q: He was one of those youngsters that Mrs., Hobby pbrougat in. 1
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dejieie PR IHSIS BUutT ehs latcnea onto him 1 ery i1ast; moveda niil aneaa very

fast.w There was anothe r piece that happened in the fall of '53 that
Izxeked
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you ought to keep in mind. We cooked u Q)Lu:vau‘ for a health
\}

tv~0ush\,

1111 for many years by Senator Carl
lverton in the House, birtmapi— Carlson
3 iomn ot A PAr B U o e a e i s | |
They had tried for years to get a payroll |
|
ress which would permit S o
their paycheck the premiums on Blue {Tross an \J
b ‘“\ vowd A minisiiadim,
Blue Bhield coverage. This had always been turned downn The policy
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of theQovernment for yei.s had been
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tions for anything other than taxes.
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|
real health insurance prog‘“a‘?;s' far#’ederaj_ employees, once agaln
context of spreading private coverage. 4and I wrote a memorandum
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years. I can't remember now how long 1t was. Iut agaln tils was

action.

and & as very deliberately pursued, I take it.
Pond: As far as I'm concerned and as far as my memory Serves me,

brought in to discuss

things, was unwilling to accept this strategy as gdesirable

with soume

I think you'd have to tall
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Q: Of course the history of the AMA, as I understand it, is that in-
opbpose any kind of health insurance at
and yet I also had the impression

29 : 17 o ) e e A Sae a3 PR e Sk e A B B 47 . PR
tnat there was a point at which a shift came about in their think-
ing, that they would accept private insurance and even promote it.
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fond: That was back in either the late '30s or early '40s. I can't
remember when. But they were very proud of the Blue Shield system.
Q: Exactly, and Blue Shield was already in operation, and yet at
Tthis point they seemed to go back. It either seemed a reversion

4 v 2 ln AT ~ - e s ~ e 4= SAYY SRR o i 1 TR . e T
to them or they were so afraid of the government gebtting involved in
any way whatsoever that even govermment efforts to strengthen the
private insurance sector...
Pond: That was a threat.
Q: Exactly.
s o 3 G PR SR P, 1 AKX ‘ ) S .7, R ~ A~ A ATTAT Y
Pond: I think that's a falr amalysis of theilr posture. I never was
close to them. I used to Le terribly frustrated by their negativism,
and I still think that they made a gross mistake in forming a judg-

ment cn the
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Q: They Tea
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reinsurance
it. This was very shortsighted.

1lly hadn't seen it

5

they had

hest of my knowledge,

to then.

0o




‘ Y+ There had been no discussion of this 1in the Press Prior...
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. Q: Can you remember any of the phrasing? Could you paraphrase Xx

Pond: I'd hesitate to. 3ut, at any rate, we went ahead with the
health insuran ,*“;fna for 4Zugrﬁl employees, and that was sub-

sequently enacted and it has been used as a prototy begause of its

yd voverace. The decision was made that it would be good, that
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Q: To set an exanmple.

bult wh
ity e it sc that the employee coul% cpooge
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rpes of plans. If heAha me jor medicalf, he

e
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And he could have coverage either through
s or through the Blues or through group

on he could make on his own volition.
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A than any other single person. 3But agailn, several
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of the consultants that we had on the reinsurance pPill Irom Ta
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insurance industry and from Blue Cross and Blue Shield and
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group practice business helped out on une~teaera; employee
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): What about the AMA'S attitude vtoward tnis:

Pond: Strangely enough, I can't remember. When I opened tnis“up,

tIWOd to think what their attitude was. I feel reasonably certain

that they supported it or at least tAeJ didn't overtly oppose it.

42

There was an awful lot of maneuvering in connection with this, and

- AN

it took much longer than some of us had hoped for or expected. I
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don't remember when it finally passed--I think in 1955,,1'n not sure.

Q: Could you describe what this man uvering was?

Pond: Well, you have within the governnm nt a large number of employee

unions or employee assochations, particularly in the postal service,
iNsurance

o

many of which had ;rouphplans for their membership, = = .- L

of a government system that would take away this benefit which they

H
w
I
@
l..h
]
S
T
o
o
R
[¢)
!
Q
o
®
4]
O
o
)
o
P-
13
+

were making available to thelr membe D
time. Again, I glve great credit to Warren Irons.

Then there was the very difficult job of working out scme
reasonably equitable arrangements with the insurance 1ng _ustiry as

such--with the Blue Cross and Blue Shield and group practice planss-
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so that the benefit structure would provide
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rs. Ho for a minute 1f we could., You
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y general way, what her attitudes were.

her a person. Can you remember any
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that she left with rank and file of the

Department was a different one. They never got to

knew her and worked with her were just

. > et s L MMM
could be. ©She was a kxr bright égi,'a very bright

he leave with the rest of the Depart-
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that when Mr H first came into the Depart-

a 1little overwhelmed by it, that she didn't have

subject matter and it was a very
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technical area that she was getting into and that perhaps she did
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feel that she was entering into a nest of Democrats or something

of feel her way along. Does this impression agree with yours?
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Eoig: I think this is likely to be true of almost anyone coming into
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1l-informed Ajerican, who is likely

to be tapped to be a Cabinet officer, is quite unlikely to be =
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technician, is quite unli
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have been identified with more than

one of the very many =e#s of the Department. Marion Folsom is as

expert on the Soclal Security system as anybody can be. I would
LXpuTs

guess he would certainly be among the tOp tenAin the country. He'd

been dealinq w1tn it o \ earo. But he didn't know much about Food

and Drug oxr Voe—ﬁeaeh or the Office of Education or the Public

Hemmirg, Troia piniee,

soclal sciences and welfare field., Arthur B ."Q wao 1n eIfect a
s S L5 P on
CAL € ET sttt e —m———ayeea., COvVernment man. He'd been e

i Served
the Civil Service Commission for 2 long time. He'd heew—swer on

Health Service, even though he'd been working a long time in t%s

the White House staff, and he was worrying from day-to-day about what
a complex department he was heading. So that when you talk about
Mrs., Hobby not knowing much about it, I think she was no different...
Q: Well, that's true. This analysis that you've jgiven I think would

apply very much t» the present situation, too, where a man is expert

in one field and has to rely on others for the fields he doesn't know
about.
I teke it khat Mrs. Hobby, however, did have the capacity,

once she did understand and accept an idea or propo or moving with
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reinsurance proposal and,

as far as I know, was convinced that it was the right thing to do.

Don't ever forget--a point I made very early in this interview--that
the ground rules were: promote the private sector in the health

bud

insurance business, »w# be sure it keeps moving ewd don't spend much

il )

”' ’ T = 9 . cas . 2 112 ) a
money. Those are aﬂ’ guidelines to live within., To this day,
I've never heard of another approach to the problem that would have

some concern with and responsi-
bllity for gilving decent health insurance protection to the American

Ly involving itself in control of the 1ndustrYJ

9]
ur

and without spending some floney on a subsidy basis.
Q: I've come to a fork in the road and I @ant to %o two different
ways at the same time. One question I think involves a certain amount

AL "

of speculation, but maybe we ought to take that one up, and that
concerns the ultimate viability of this reinsurance proposal.
In retrospect, do you think it would have made a substantial differ-

ence in the spread of health insurance protection?
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cond: I've thought about thigrews=smes over s long time, and I
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literally don't know the answer. I'xn inclined to think it would have

was an unknown risk, Which many companies were reluctant to assume.

I think it might have Dbeen helpful in trying to reach marginal
income groug but it clearly wouldn't have made insurance available

~e

to those that didn't have the pocketbook. You cannot get coverage for

low income groups at a price that they can afford to pay unless you
read the risk over the total populati This is a fact that is

so clear I need not go furthery &nd the reinsmrance bill could not

have done that job.

Q: And for these low incone groups then, you have various strategies
nat you can use to help them. You can somehow increase their nes
incone.

&'fquL*“xé“ﬂkAkA
Pond: The way the United States has gone has been to have, health ceme

for the aged)and to have the Kerr-Mills Program.

Q: That's right. You could have a large and very generous Kerr-Mills
approach, which might well have done the Job, or you could somehow
provide tax incentives or tax reductions or a larger exemption for
low income people or various tax mechanisms.

in 1953 and 1959
Pond: Well, let me tell you something, friend. Backlwhen wWe were
looking at various approaches, we had considered and discarded a
proposal to do something through the income tax roa.te,mwe

considered, for example, the possibllity of either dedu ing from

L)
sross income the cost of insurance premiums, or wew provida/some kind
p)
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when you re trylng to do somethling about the poor. They don't

pay income tax. The Ribicoff proposal on education would help you

and me, but it won't help the faully that doesn't pay an income

-1 .‘(-aw. :
tax. It's the same a&aﬁ-—*h&ng that we looked at back in the early

50s. fih I don't think it's ever &een the light of day. I don't
think the American people yet understand it. Thatyf was the popula
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Q: How blg a group of people is it that we're dealing with--the ones

that don't pay income tax at all?

.’"

Pond: I don't know, bput,it's a falr chunk. But it makes no difference.
'm&v-w ev heed po\\a‘

pays 85 a year income tax. Heerd 1nsurs ance, cos tg y-e-u\\-m

e : e : LI
a hundred bucks or two hundred bucks. The §5 saved on yees income

y deduct the premium from the tax...

Q¢ In other words, really the only way it could be done would be
through some sort of negative income-tax proposal.

BuY it codd maam e
Pond: Yes., ou provide a negative WuCO..le tax for health insurance

Ta o ~7 A~ A <= am e - £ ~ oINS e :
perore -you do for rent or food oT clothing:..

Q: And even the lidea of a negative income tax was much too

sociglistic, I'm sure, and radical.
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Pond: I don't think we even thou of ®eek., Ve didn't give that
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any conslderation once we identified fairly clearly what the implica-

Q: What about the idea of a direct subsidy to the insurance industry

Zor low lncome people? Was such an idea consiidered?

Pond: I don't think seriously because of the inherent problems.

r 7 ~ 5 !
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»

-t p ,Alt thét time)at leas?,the quality of coverage, the
extent of coverage, was so disvarate among companies, among Blue

Cfross-Blue Shield plans, that it would have meant the enterins > by

the $overnment into very substantial regulation of the industry, and

+he- bete i L .f" :

e Wos o e=e% nolre. We had a lot of Gealings withyWational o

w1 fssociation of Insurance COmmissioners who were worried sick

about the &rEm reinsurance bill because they thought this was an

entering wedge to'iéde”al regulation of the insurance companies.
Tndeed, in

AR e i, U110 Teinsurance blll had a clause % it that

specifically prohibited theuiéds from taking over regulation of the

insurance industry.

Q: Yes, that's another aspect of this thing--the fact that the

regulation of the insurance business has always been a state propo-

~ =

sition. Would this have been possibly a part of the ex planation

H

or the split that develcped within the group of advisers and

o

onsultants that you brought in on this thing when it was first

)

being considered?
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de 10U gave me Tne 1mpresslion uasg Some were Cool ana some oI Ttaen

favored it.
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Pond: Well, yes. Some #f=tirem didn t think it would work, but they

L Tads

wanted to be sure that we had the best possible fhance to make it
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Q: But the argument of federal regulation was not...

Pond: That was not af serious problem with them. It was with the

0

f)t::.tc nsurance Q}:missianc‘"s, and I suspect was with many of th
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galLlel lnsurance companlies.

@: I see. How werhaps we could pick up with the history then of this
proposal. What happened to it then in Congress?

Pond: Well, 1t went to the floor ;t' the House about the middle of
tle anecdote: My daag-w‘ir, who was then 13,

sat on the floor of the House the day the bmews was deba‘ced) and
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Q: How/ did she get to the

K

of the House?
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Pond: We had a very good friend tmsma in the House.l I¥ thin"c:lﬁre

Members awe limited to three or four kids a year on the floor--kids

-

under 15, or something like that. This Wember, knowing of our interest,

_LJ)
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called up the night before and wanted to know if S arah could duck

out of school; he wanted to have her sit with him on the or u*e“
Esun*M
I was., 1td ueen
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around a long time and you expect these ‘T,hin;;s,-: wed 'M)\'»fr"-
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: g e eae Cnarllie Halleck played a role in this.

Mrs. Hobby had told me Monday morning she d seen Joe Martin and

Seam Rayburn and somebody else on S&turday nizh?,and they said

were going to rough her up a little bit but they would get it vthrough.
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I was quiti if jent from the first that it would pass. The

=d

Lea“'llcungklad onitrol of the House. " Well, they got intoc some

alrly acrimonious debate. Charlie nullech came storming down

into the well making a lot of noise about 1we Hunarod ayss i Yeou

o

ought to get the Record out. It was around the l4th of April--I
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know 1t was around the m ( 42 i i 07
groead

noise, and he came down with a belligerent speech, and this S

had some impact. He was supporting the administration, but I think

he may have pushed some people off that would have gopne along with 1it.

- - - - 2 iy wa ] 'é T -— vie

On the roll call we had reasonable suppord Iromythe House Interstate

Committeek not unanimous But we lost a lot of people that we thought

ought to go along with it--2 lot of Republicans opposed it. And there

weren't enough Democrats who supported it to

o

margin., I1f I'm not mistaken--
WS
and you as a historian might want to check--that™ the first health

insurance bill that ever got to the floor of the Houserr the Senate = =

So the thing missed by a substantia

5 !

for debate and a veolbes = o E peen it
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¢ A2t was 1T that defeated 1t? Was there any one or two states...?
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~=ond: 1t may sound facetious: it,didn’'t have the votes. This is
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Q: Why not Why didnit it have the votes?
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fond: Well, there wasn't Republican party discipline. After all, the

bill had only been in Congress about two months. It dealt with a

Qs

highly volatile subject. It was, to say the least, controversial.
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And in my experience with the legistative busine , 1t's rare indeed
to get action on a confroversial measure in less than three years and
usually it's five from the time the idea is first Presented and worked
up on the Hill., This isn't always true. You can't take the first
5 ; O

ession of the 89th as, an example 01 athnl On yeo® normal

k&éﬂhhn»

Alotribulion curve, L e ouu at one end.

Take the history of the ébderal employee health insurance

bill. It took a long time to get that through, and that was nowhere
near as ¢ roversial
Q: It seems surprising that 1t was so controversial because by com=-

the people who wanted something substantial
threat. That/s one point of view. Another point
of view ,jedmboi-ne¥c 1s that it won't do anything. "I don't want to

be attached to support of that." And the third point of view--and I
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more groundwork have been lalid and more effort made to get the

B

basic strategy across to people and to sell it

ucn.%ﬂ“uﬁ .é S Aas s
Ponds Don't forﬂeu —— | C11C chhd.5e331;u of the 33rd Congress.

{ PR 9
Yoweiamé o Di-election coming up that fall. The party in power wanted

to make a record, and it felt that this was an important social

issue. The questio "Should they have tried to keep it over till
late in the session?" I don't know. I am not privy to, and never
have been, the innermost thinking of the legisliative tacticlans.

I've been ay long-term observer of the passing scene and have a

little better than high school knowledge of civics,%ut on this ‘nA.oJu.

business I don't know what Wheels #ithin wee wheels were working,

(O]

)
or at least I don't know how they worked. I've learned to believe
almost anything. But on the strategy, I've always assumed that they
wented to get the damned thing as a title on the books. I think
you will find that John McCormack voted for it. and I tThink the
reason for it is that he was anxious to get a title on the books

to amend sometime in the future. S i

Q: After it was defeated, where did it go from there?

2 31

Pond: You couldn't do anything with it the balance of that year.

=

fitthm We got working again to try and modify the thing to make i1t more
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palatable, to meet some of olJecs that had been cited.
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501 about I Think there was something
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for the aged. I can't remember what else there was. But we pulled
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Pond: But normally, you see,
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veaten. Normally what happens go up there and sit, [
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up in conference.

don't forget it

lost the House in the 84th Congress, and instead of having a

ublican chairn

House Interstate Committee, they had
“h 'ﬂ‘s‘—

rfercy Friest, who ¥ a Democrat. ™ewas had voted for the bill in

54, but I think he did that as a loyal member of the Wolverton-
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rriest teamn. They worked,together. IThey were very close in
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the club. But the¥ impetus in the House leadership was not to be
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supportive,as in the prior Congress it had been to be supportive.

1S

effectively dead. There wasn € enough s
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Pond: There wasn'st any real steam.

Q: What happened then?

Pond: That was '54. THen the new bill went up in 5>.hand Mrs. Hobby

resigned the 31st of July, 1955, =wd Marion Folson

known him when he was Under Secretary of the
‘m HEW

Treasury ewe= before he tock offic%l He told me we had to find a

o

Secretary. I ha

way out of this dilemma and he thought he had one.

Qs What dilemma...?

Pond: Well, he didn't favor the reinsurance approach. He thought it

wouldn't do the job and that the Aﬁmihistratiun shouldn't be supporting

o§f° W

ETY
T

it, but you can't back chphing %o nothing. You
you debide you aren't golng to have a 3 program

started work on a proposal that some of the insurance

with us about the year preceding, s tTha

b it o
- -
insurance co:ganies“ to sel up private  insurance pools for the
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Well, at any rate, we worked toward a bill that would make

really and not something that I was competent to deal with. I was

.

by that time dealing more and more with medical education, the

health issues. He

[0}

used me an awful lot in that, and he used me on health insurance

for *eder;xl employees--that was stlll kicking around.

J: What about the Public Health Service in all of this? Your men-

2 n

tloning of that brought that idea brought to mind. And I mean
oing back, 1f you can do so, to the Wagner-gMurray-Dingell period

] % 18 |

well. What was the attitude of the Public Health Service &nd what

o

. fond: I think to get an accurate picture of thelr position back zlﬁ.
Dr. “Themas

the late '40s, starting in the mid '40s, you ought to talk with Gem
7

Parran, who was 5u1‘;ea‘1-?eneral unti 19481and == U0 Len Scheele, who

L b i e T e e e e SRS e R




Q: How about Parran and Scheele? Where are they now?
LQQMWAA'
Pond: Dr. Parran is in Pittsburgh. Dr.&Scﬁeele is president of

arner-Chillcote, we—as lorris Plains, New Jersey, .

Jorner-Chillcote is part of the Lambert fharmaceu

Q: Then how about their position on the reinsurance proposal and

&

the /ro oling arrangement?

]

Pond: What happened in general was that the Public Health Service
e
traditionally did not get iltself infolved in the politlcal‘fighting.

It @bviously supported administration positions, but did not get

sctively engeged in golng out and making speeches and trying to
carry on whatever lobbying activities one can as a public employee.
I think thet's a fair statement. Ehc‘fur¢esni?enerul obviously
- p—
] i Se

would supoprt administration pu"itlunsk always doesL always ha

Q: But in terms of taking an active role in the development of

Programs., ..




£old: iney provide technical staff assistance. We do an all sorts of

-

Q: But they haven't traditionally made any claims for programs them-

R KTl A 5 41 R a
Lfond: Not health insurance.

fond: I think there's no simple answer to that question. The Servic%

in nmy careor)has been @most concerned with public policy issues that

are of substantively vrofessional nature. It)s bveen very active in

support of medical res, earch; it's been very active for years in

support of medical education; it's been very active for years in

’b:’

support of grants programs for lmproving public health services in

the.étates and localities; it's been very active in supporting progrmms

'.J

like the Indian health pr ogram; 1t's been very active in developing its
own technical and professional competence, and I think that there's
no question that we've got possibly the greatest collection in the
world of speclalized competencies in the health i1d. The Service
4s a matter of policy has generally moved in the direction of increasig
1ts abilities to do the professional health Job that needs to be done.
In pursuing this objective, it obviously supports administration
proposals that may be tangential to the Service intii?st. We're
actively moving to help make nm Titleﬁgiiband 19 of,Social Security

[}
Amcndments of '65 the best managed and highest professional qualities

Ao Sune d:d

that we can. But we=do not participate actively in the debste. fThe
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Surgeon-General made several speeches in which he ®nthusiastically endorsed the
4dministration proposal, but it has not per se recommended legislative proposals

in this fielde On the other h add, every year we have a long list of recommendations
for legislation for consideration by the Administration. They may run to 20, 25
different pieces, but these are in the r ealm of professional and technical subject
matter rather than social insurance. They may include, of course, substantial pro-

posals of a public policy nature like medical edutation or hospital mbdernization.

Q: In some cases are these proposals which are controversial, ones that might run

into some ppposition from say, the American Medical ®ssociation?

Pond: Our support of medical education legislation, for instance, is a case in
point, The AMA many years ago came out for one-=shot grants for construction of
medical schools, The Public Health Service has always taken a much broader attitude,
a much more realistic one., Wg still do.

The Serwice was veryinfluential in getting the original water pollution contxeol
legislation enacted in 1948, We'vehad a great dedl to do with the Clean Air Act. These
are examples of major miblic policy issures. But we approached them basically from
a professional standpoint, As you know, recently welost the water pollution contraol
program because we were charged with being inefficient in pushing an active enforcement
program, particularly. Theret's lots behind the scenes on this, but never forget that
it was the Service mm=xkak that wa s taking a leadership position that led up to the
enactment of the original Water Pollution Control Act in 1948, Our interest in this

began in 1912, I don'tknow whether this answers your question.
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| Q: I think that it does. It addresses 1tself to the guestion. It
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it, but I don't know whether it 's possibly to

AR T mad  Wa e 3= -
Pond: I don't think it wrs.

Q: The pooling proposal which Marion Folsom was instrumental in

2 4

evolving and it never got anywhere either, what was the feeling on

%
his? What was the attitude of Congress toward 1t?

: _ by : Sy S 5 ; ‘QZ:MMMWw
Pond: Mr. Folsom told me that he had discussed the matter with & Y
Howse

r, who was ehairman of theAJudiciary Commi ttee. Celler was

«Q
)
|
g
®
o

gquite interested in doing something along these lines, but the thing
‘ really never got off the ground, a-n?-e'mc' alongi about that timeJ
ﬂv.ﬁow»])
weest the gentleman from Rhode Idlandpintroduced his health care for
A
the aced proposal. I think that came in in '57.

Qe AS I1ar

as you're concerned, though, in your own personal part,

you've said about all you know about this pooling proposal?

wadd

Pond: I've said about all I can recall., I“have to do somef thinking
about it, but I wasntt deeply involved 1n that.

Q: With the Forand bill... We've Jjust opened the 1lid of the
Pandora's box with the Forand bill. What do you know about its

origins and were you in any way involved with the Forand bill?

Pond: I wasn't directly involved other than trying to see to it that

estimates that we were asked for as to the cost were accurate. I




- - 9 - = 17 = S P CRORE, Pl MRk X PR R ST, G | < SR ~ -~ S AT A o
personally always thought that our people, for one reason or another,
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underestimated what the cost would be. They either underestimated

the average length of stay or the frequency of usej'ife had begun

; : J s\aﬁ

back when Chester Keefer was = here--he left in July of

fya

: SRl : 10 ; : o :

Mrs. Hobby resigned--¥= trymme to get together some basic information
: : Wrs.

on heelth needs of the aged. AwEtd—oy re—meme—e® Acnes Brewster

did a lot of work on this. ©She was then in the Social Securi t§

AdministrationJin4&esearch and.statistics. She's now in the PZublic

Health Service. ?I think my principal role wagya doubting Thomas

on the kinds of material that were coming out of the Social Security

Administration to the Secretary's office for reports on the Forand

bill. I was quite concerned about the estimates.

Q: What was the basis of lthose estimates? Do you know anything about

the mechanicg?

Pond: They used what data they could lay their hands on. Insofar as

the actuarial estimates were concerned, what rates would Eﬁ‘needed,
I never had any trouble because I had great confidence in m» ehief

] 5 o ; 3! i et :
uctuary &8 the Social Security Administration, Bobt Myers. But I had
; . L were . s :
very grave doubts as to the raw data which wes being supplied by
other staff, and these doubts persist to this day. I've never reazally
changed my mind. Whether this was intended so as toc avoid any con-
cern that the program would be so expensive that it would be un-
acceptable, or whether it was lack of knowledge of the wa y in which
demands for health services &volve, or whether it was misinterpreta-

tion of data that they were able to gather from suvpliers--health




ervices and the hospltals--or what Beason, I have no way of know-

ing. A1l T know is that I was and am skeptical.

Q¢ Do you have any specific.grounds for being skeptical?

Pond: Yes, I think I did. 'Part of 1t was my personal béiief that

we had a bunch of peonle'who were so dedicated to some form bf v

health insurance system obderated either directly by tqe 4eaeral Qovern—'
: - - !

ment, preferably thatA or by contract with carriers, that I thqught

they were blinded to some of the realistic parts of the'pianning

for such an effort. And my vosition I think is Well4knowﬁ. '¥Qu may

2

have heard it already.

Pond: You're likely to as you get into this.
Q: fhis, I take it, was throughly discussed within ﬁhe Departmentf
Pond: And in the House, yes.
Q: And in the House Ways and Means Commi ttee.
Haw

Pond: No, this wasn't 8iscussed there so much as here in. umadyﬁﬁwy

Q: I see what you mean. Then would 1t be falilr to say that your‘ownf

conviction was that pm those Xfigures which Were”prdduééd by the

AMA were closer?
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Pond: I wouldn't ;“On. I wouldn't have any more faith in their

oven mind with

8]

figures bvecause I'me never attributed to them ar
respect to the need for au&%derally sponsored program. I don't know
when I crossed the bridge in becoming convinced that you had to use
substantial’ tax. . funds- to provide coverage for low income groupns.

'S50s. I have rezal misgivings about

I would be sometime in the mid
having a centralized federal system, and I Thought that the approach

and
fmhm that ultimately became the Javits approach/later begame the '?

Republican party-suppvorted prvposal, was more realistic. I had -E

&

hoped that we could figure out some way in which ené tates would jfg
-

play 8 significant role. Strangely enough, in the evolution of the
XU A the Social 3O

.healthecare=for «the=aged bill that finally passed, Title

here were ewure

oo 10ts of th&aﬁs that I h@ved would be in any legislation that

ultimate was gritten into law. : I£e benerlt -
wes pjuwnd or o yropased nd:\q Sundor Tuuiks w1960« wpm which T umhl And heceis

structurep. We=s=t g deductible. b}e—ﬂe% state involvement, and
Yhere Therers

b e’ Pleﬁx 7 dnvolvement by the private sector of the economy,

‘here are - some horrendon Uroblems still to confront, but nonethe-
ha otadde thedr W wor

lesskthas is. much more like tne kind of compromise I hcped could

; than I had

be acconmplish ed/ﬂk&nxi anticipated would happen.

3

fL

Q: In the development of the Javits and Fleming proposal, you played
2 role in this so that your ideas and feelings are to a certain ex-

tent reflected in the way those proposals came out. I think we

- Poqu talk about those in a minute. Before I do, though, I think

7

be worthwhile to concentrate on the Forand proposal first

-‘and ask you what you know about the origins of the Forand proposal
o v &

and xm what EXXERX involvement the Social Security Administration

and the Department had with the evolution of this proposal?
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Pond: On the lajter point, the impact that the Departmen}ﬂ if you

are now talking about the office of the Secretary--I assume you are--

v

el £ 0es ool : R = : :
#evémy [ would say,nill, 7ith respect to Social Security, I don't know
The [actio, b ——

Q: What about your attitude toward the Forand bill? As you pointed
out, the great need was in the area of the low income groups. In
the Forand bill and in the medicare bill, if ¢I can lump the two
together, I'm not so d&ure about the Forand bill, but certalinly the
S0
King-Anderson bill wasn't really a low-income group proposal sxex/
much as a middle income or lower middle income p rogram. So in
view of this and your recognition of what area was the one that
needed the attention, what was your reection? Did you react against
it on this ground or did you feel this would be a contribution,

despite certain bureaucratic or administrative procedures...?

Pond: A+t that point in time, I $till hoped that something could be

evolved that would not be able to become a national health insurance

3

(U]
ct

1A

1e

e

orand bill as a threat, a device to begin with one

n o0t
Llw I o i

-~

1
—

(@

segment of the population clearly identified, which could in time
become a national health insurance plan. It didn't really appeal
might later, if you will. But when it first c%me out,

1 enamored of the hope that we could somehow or other do

the job in this country through the principle medium of private
8ffort, with whatever tax support needed to be provided to see to it
that the poor, whether they be old or young or middle-aged, would

hawe equal opportunity for protection. By this time, as I sald earlier
in this interview, I had become firmly convinced that it was going

TNV 4_
to talke 2 substantial (eebsmetsg of Tederal tax funds to do the Job.
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I had no question about that. Y,u had to be absolutely blind not to see that

at this point.
Q: There seem to have been those who were,
Pond: Oh, Yes. There were a lot.

Q: What form did this thinking take? Did it take the form in your mind of

specific ldegislative proposals that you thought would be preferable?

Pond: Once Marion Folsom had left == he left in 'S8 and Arthur Flemming came

- in =- we were invcz/olved in other kinds of problems and weren't giving much
attention to the health insurance problem. As I recall it I first gop involved
with the Javits enterprdses through the efforts of Winslow Carlton and Arthur Harlow
whon*I had gotten to know during our work-up of the Federal Emgq;b'ee Health Insuranpe

program. Mr. Carlton was close to Sgnators Javits and Case (of New Jersey) and

brought me into the picture,
Q: The Forand bill had already been introduced,
Pond: Oh, yes. That had gone in earlier,

Q: What was your reaction to the Forand bill in terms of politics, the political

' situation? What did you view this move as being ?




1d: I thouzht it primarily was labor's new approach to getting
the. natione iealth service plan that they wanted.
¢ This was definitely in your mind identified with labor.

Pond: Ch, yes--no question.

Q: Why?
was p o\(.ul e spasor, at ’“‘J'“ 1)
*tm, ¢ Wot ot very wdl Mwnm’«h ouse . 5

Pond: Aime Hormxamx Forand, for one thin?,haﬁd the very rapid way wes

in which suvport developed for 1t among the groups ye# usually

)

identifyyas the labor groups--both on the Hill and elsewhere.
' =

Q: Could you be a little bit more specific &bout that?

Pond: The kinds of people on the Hill that got interested in it

represented that segment of the Congress which seemed to me to be

that organized labor generally espouses.

that would auvtomatically focus attention

-

of one segment of the population--notably the aged--very vigpmously
on their plight vis-a-vis health insurance. And it was clearly some-

thing that would be good for them as far as they were concerned,

.

and it was clearly, in terms of what it offered, so much better than

what the Adull-‘.lstr jon had come up with in terms of benefits and
the effect on the pocketbook, that it obviously was going to be

; Soon
attractive. I couldn't visualize it getting eﬂa0u82/ but I could see

it as a proposal that would rally lots of people around. Now, Alme
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Porand had a hell of a time with this in thejearly days, as you
YA Ao, TT 9 3o PR YL T m o ~ . - . - - 27+ 8
know.  He couldn't get = s SUPPer L for 1%, I 'think he put it

in as a sleeper or whoever were pushing it used him as a sleeper to
ot quite surprised in time when it became a cause

celebre. ; |

Q: Well, thath approximatel;

3

it. My impression is that there was

even a certain reluctance at first.

Q: Yes, until he found out he might win it.

Pond: Nobody had ever heard of him up until then.

=

Q: So, in other words, you didn't see the Forand bill as a serious

threat, as something that could be enacted. Therefore, you weren't

particularly worried about it and felt the need for an immediate

response to it.

4J“j €1 senhower ‘

Pond: I felt at 6hat time“theﬂﬂdministration really should come up

with something. I was loyal to it and trying to make it _look as good
‘Ivmq ‘,JJ

as it could, (ind it stood for a lot of things I believed in gewee

didn't stand for some things I belleve in. But I felt very strongly

that it had to have something that it could talk about and support,

Qnd it had nothing.

i
|
Q: Didk the introduction of the Forand bill lead to discussion




within the Department?

Pond: Not right away, no. It was so clear that nothing would happen

to the Forand bill, again on the assumption that it takes x number

Q: One didn't tend automatically to look ahead to the 1960 election?

iAumqu’dld

® 5}

Pond: A few people did. Arthur But I don't think 1%
was the Forand bill; i1t was the conviction that the Aﬁministration

had to have some positive posture on health insurance.

Q: LIt wasn't the Forand bill that stimulated his thinking along those

Q: And of course, as you say, in '57 the bill was still an obscure

ond: It wasn't obscure around the Social Security halls. Yas used to

hear & ot iabownt At

Q: They were very interested in it. ZEven when kt was first introduced.
Did you hear about it before it was introduced? Was it then called
the Forand bill? Was it recognized that Forand would introduce 1t

or were they talking now simply about a health insurance [op b e



Q: For the aged. Because there was such a bill perhaps you recall
in the very e arly '50s. Humphrey introduced it and then it dis-
appeared.

Pond: I'd forgotten about that.

S

Q: The idea of a health insurance bill for the aged was something

hat had already occurred to people several years before even.

Pond: Well, as I told you, in the second version of the reinsurance
bill, we had something that would provide special relinsurance for
amd TWrove

efforts that were designed to promote‘healuh insurance coverage

for the aged.



LH B Interview # 2

Interview with M, Allen Pond by Peter A. Corning
Bethesda, Maryland August 18, 1966

Q: Perhaps we could start today by starting with the year
1960, which was a Presidential year, and which saw a great
deal of actlvity in the area of health care legislation.
Perhaps you could reconstruct for me your recollection of the

events of that Presidential year.

Pond: My recollection is rather vague, but beginning either in
late 1959 or early 1960 it became evident that the Eisenhower
administration was beginning to feel the need for some kind

of a health insurance program. My recollection is that

Mr. i2:£251at a meeting in the White House in December of

'59 or January of '60 made a very strong plea to have a pro-
rosal that the administration could support. It was before
that time that Senator Javits had talked with me about getting
some help 1n drafting a bill which he proposed to introduce

into that session of Congress, into the session starting in
1960.

Q: What was his motive?

Pond: He felt very strongly that thete had to be a Republican
0 YN\
gpo&e&én, and he felt that he personally needed it and couldn't
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be comfortable without something that he could espouse.

I cleared this request with the S€cretary. By that
time I was Acting $pecial &ssistant for Health and uedical
hifairs, my immediate chief having died. I was granted authority
to work with the SEnator and his staff.

Q: Now, the Nixon discussion at the White House: was that in

the context of a special meeting called on this issue?

Pond: I don't know the details of what went on, but I do know

that when Secretary Fleming came back from this White House

meeting, Bob Forsythe, who was Agsistant Secretary for Legisla~-
. tion, told me that I would be working on an administration bill

and not just one for Senator Javits.

Q: I think it would be very important to try to pinpoint a
little bit more specifically the date of this White House
conference. Would it have been before the end of 1959%

Pond: Ny impression was that it was sometime in December of

1959. And if I were to guess, 1t was about the middle of

December. It was not a special conferefnce on health insurance.
“k.*‘-“.% at

It was a\meeting/which the Secretary and his immediate staff

ptn of l-uor approintees med-i0 discuss%he 1960 legislative

Program for HEW. I was not present at the meeting and only know




Pond - 49
ww.q
what has been told me by Messrs. #lealng' and Forsythe.

At any rate, we began by utilizing a small staff of
people from the Public Health Service lto develop a prograpwhich
could be used i1f the Pepesident and Cabinet went along with it
as an administration bill. The general characteristics of the
proposal were reflected ultimately in what was introduced during
the course of heemtmess—y very extended exectmive sesslions
of the House Ways and Means Committee on the Forand bill in

the spring and early summer of 1960.

Q: Meanwhile, what happened with davits? Were you also working

for him or was what you were drafting...?

Pond: He went ahead with his bill.

Q: Independently.

Pond: Yes, but gave solid support to the administration effort.

Q: Who was doing his work then?

Pond: He was getting tecymical advice from some of us in HEW
and was using outside resources. I think Arthur Harlow and
Winslow Carleton worked with him falrly closely.

The principal contribution that I felt we from the
executive branch made to/}gsits effort was to outline a series

amd
of benefits, wh’” ™ included not only hospitalizationhrnursing
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home care, but also diagnostic services and home health care
services, which were for the first time introduced as a kind

of service to be covered byfirepayment or insurance plan.

Q: And historically then this was later picked up by the
people who were active in drafting the King-Anderson bill
and it became part of the accepted framework of a piece of

adequage legislation?

Pond: I've always believed that the principal contribution

of Senator Javits to the health care for the aged legislation
%hat was finally enacted involved the development of a G&Sfﬁ
of services, which from a professional standpoint made a great
deal of sense. The objective of the out-of-hospital insurance
benefits was to avoid ong-term costly hospitalization or
hesplitalization for diagnostic services, which could be handled

Just as well on an out-patient basis.

Q: How does this bompare with the bill Senator McNamara intro-

duced in that year also? Didn!t that have some innovation
in it, too?

Pond: I don't recall the McNamara bill at all at this pointa
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I'd have to look back.

Q: At any rate, though, in the development of th&s administra-
tion proposal, this work that you were doinz wea® on over what

period of time?

Pond: For two or three months, as I recall it. The first time
that 1t was revealed publicly was ¢n the first morning when
Secretary Fleming went to executive sessions before the Ways
and Means Committee ip the House. And I can recall a comment

by the Qhairmagzglgt LZ.L;d not expected to report any legisla-~
tion that year and he'A expected to have very brief hearings;
that this introduced a whole new set of circumstances and he
felt that they'd have to take the issue up in committee in
executive sesslon. And this series of executive sessions to
the best of my knowledge went on fmr two and a half or three

months three or four mornings a week while administration

wltnesses struggled with various aspects of rending legislation.

Q: As I understand it, although there was a propesal, there was

not a bill at that time.

Pond: That's correct.

Q: And I also understand that Thxmexxwxsx by no means had the de-

cision been made to go ahead with this as an official administra-

tion proposal.

Pond: That is correct.
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Q: Could you explain a little bit about the nature of the dis-
cusslons going on within the administration?

Pond: I wasn't privileged to the political discussions that
were carried on. One characteristic of Secretary Fleming that
I always admired was that he used us career people as technical
experts and would rely very heavily on us for advice; but when
it Bame to political 3%%2!2:3& he was wery careful to have
those held among the political people and not among the career
people. I was pretty well informed as to what was going on,

but I wasn't a party to or immediastely involved in thise dis-

cussions.

Q: Well, from your vantage point, though, could you perhaps
describe for me in a general way what the nature of the internmal

prolitical discussion was?

Pond: Well, there was a strong split within the Cabinet, as I
understand it, and also among the Republican members of the
House Ways and Means Committee as to whether there should be
an administration bill at all. Johnny Byrnes, who was the
principal strong man for the Republicans on the Ways and Means
Committee, and others were sharply divided as to whether there
should be an administration proposal. Some felt that if the

Elsenhower people came up with & bill, then the Democrats would

be more likely to rally‘}ound the Forand bill or something like
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the Farand blll or—semeihing-Itire—the—Foramd—biI? and report
1t and probably get it through the House at least; whereas if
there was no oppositiocn ‘t:Jill,“ao Republican bill, they could
expect to get more opposition to the Forand approach.

I think the same set of considerationsgfiere held in the
executive branch among the political leadership. The President
himself I don't believe ever got deeply involved in this.

He seemed to think the administration ought to have something,
but I don't think he really took any strong position either pro
or con.

Now, the particular role of the Vice President has never
been clear to me. He was obviously going to run in 1960 and
we had to assume that he was going to be confronted with a plat-
form issue and a position of his own on health insurance. I
gathe thaﬁ during the winter of '59-'60 and spring he supported
what F&engxg was dolng, but I never was consclous of all-out
support, an effort to get legislation enacted. I wogld not
want my recollection on this to be your sole source of informa-

tion because there are a lot of people better informed on that

than I am.

Q: Am I correct that one of the reasons why til you were able
to present only a proposal or the outlines of a proposal rather
than a bill at the executive sefssion of the Ways and Means

Committee was because this issue had not yet been resolwed at
that point?
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Pond: That's my recollection.

Q: Why was it that you appeared at all at that point? Was
it necessary for the administration to...?

Pond: They had been requested to appear and take a position

on the Forand bill, and Mr. Fleming felt that 1t Was f%? gﬁjteu“ﬂml
for the administration to speak from the platfo than to speak
solely from the position of opposition.

Q: One thing that has puzzled me is why the administration
chose a proposal along the lines of the Jaevits proposal and
the ultimate Fleming proposal rather than something more along
the line s of something that finally came out as the Kerr-Mills

blll. In other words, taking the welfare and general revneue

approach.,

AP WIS PTPIIY 4 wv\c\o.d ~

Pond: I don't recall exactly why they came out along the lines
they did. I think there was real concern about tackling the
health care for the aged &ssue solelfy along the welfare route.
There was ak strong feeling among many people who Wwere mmEx
working with Mr. Fleming that thestate agencles should play an
actlve role and those of us who were in the health business felt
1t ought to be state health departments. We felt that this
would in the long run be a more satisfactory approach to an

ultimately bigger program if it was handled by the health
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rather than the welfare people. Don't forget that there were
several Republicans at that time, prominent ones, who were
privately convinced that the only logical approach to she solu-
tion of the problem was to use the Social Security taxing
mechanism as a basls Ror financing the program. They didn't
think 1t should be done through general revenues.

Q: Including Javits?

Pond: I think Javits had that opinion. I think gpou ought to

t alk to him about it. I think he could have gone for a Social
Securlty approach a long bkme before he finally came out for
it. 1t seems to me as though most people who had given 1t

very serious thought 3#g¢bf the opinion that the most responsible
approach to financing a health insurance program in this country

1s through some kind of an earmarked tax rather than through

the use of general revenues. I think that was true at that
time.

My own preference at the time would have been to use
the Soclal Security tax or something like it and to emphasize
state administration to the maximmm possible extent.

Q: Yes, much along the lines of the original Wagner proposal
in the latter '30s.

Pond: Yes.
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Q: I wonder whether there were any political considerations,
too, in the choise of the kind of proposal you finally pre-
sented to the Congress. Was this the one that was felt it would

be the most acceptable to the Republican members of the Congress?

Pond: I think that this was a very important consideration
:::ﬁ/the Republican membership was sharply divided . There were
many that were firmly convinced that there was no need. I

never could understand how they could reach that conelusion.
there were many who were convinced that there was a need, but
were not prepared to go for an approach which they felt would
simply form the basis for ultimate enlargmement into a national
health insurance scheme. Many of those of the laster group

felt that the approach that Mr. Fleming and his associates worked
out was probably the most acceptable by and large to the Re-
publicans. On the House Ways and Means Committee there were
several Republican members who were qulite evidently thmroughly
disturbed that Mr. Fleming came uﬁzénything. I can't remember

exactly who these were.

Q: You know, I've puzzled about this situation because in the
end the Kerr-Mills bill sailedfhrough the House and the Senate
by rather large majorities. I wonder what your explanatlon is

for this. Was consideration given to a kind of Kerr-Mills kind
of approach?
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Pond: I don't recall that we gave this any consideration when
we were worklng in the late fall and early winter of '59 and

'60, with _the Kerr-Nil#s-approach.

Q: Your primary concern then was for something that would be
closer to the health insurance kind of approach and that would

be more of a compromise, a middle ground position.
Pond: Yes.

Q: It seems to me that tacfically this was a very important
consideration in terms of the political situstion in the
Congress.. What do you suppose would have happened if you had

opted for a Kerr-Mills kind of approach?

Pond: I have no way of judging. I really don't. It went,

as you say, very well when it finally was presented. It might
have gone very well anyway. What it did was to get an awful
lot of members of Congress off the hook. What its long-term
implications are, I'm not prepared at this point to say. I

have some strong suspicions.

Q: Now, when Mills came forward with his own proposal, what

sort of position did the administration take at that point?
PONB: I must confess I don't remember.

Q: You don't recall any discussions internally on that.
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Pond: I don't. I'm sure there were some. And I'm sure if T
sat down and thought for a while I might remember them, but

right at the moment I don't remember.

R: I gather that this was something that came from Mills him-
self, that came from within the committee and not something

that originated either in the administration or...

Pond: It sure didn't originate downtown to the best of my
knowledge.

Q: Now, I wonder if we could Pick up the chronology of the
administration's proposal here. At first, you had only a proposal
in outline form to present to the Ways and Means Committee. I
Bake 1t, the issue was later resaved and yonr did receive a BO~-

ahead for Zsuch a proposal.

Pond: Well, Secretary Fleming couldn't have Presented the

ouline at the time ‘i the executive session of the Ways and Means
Committee started if he hadn't had taclit approval from the
President or the Cabinet so that 1t was clear that there was
enough agreement with his point of view that he could go forward

and make his presentation.

Q: And yet on the other hand, I take it that this never officially
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became an administration bill.
Pond: In the sense that it was introduced as such?
Q: With a Presidential message...

Pond: There was never a Presidential message on it, no.

Q: Or any of thefitual...

Pond: No.

Q: This I think raises a question, too: why was i1t that the
President couldn't be brought into this strongly enough to make
thls something to which he was committed?

Pond: I don't know the answer to that question. I would presume
that the issue was such a debatable one within the Republican
rerty and within theﬂldministration that he probably did not

see a clear-cut concensus and he had never really pushed any
health insurance business after the reinsurance plan. He did

work for that one.

Q: In general, I have the impression about the events of 1960
that at that point, since the Democrats did control the
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Congress and since it was a Presidential election year, that
no matter how sound and how reasonable the administration's
proposal was and no matter how strongly Eisenhower might have
backed it or not backed it, that the Democrats were not going
to let a Republican bill through the Congress that year.

Pond: I don't see how they could really.
Q: This was your feeling, though...
Pond: That was my feeling.

Q: That all you could really do was go on record with a proposal

that was a reasonable alternative.

Pond: Present a reasonable alternative which had some charac-
terlstics in 1t which might be useful in working out the
ultimate compromise that by that time many of us were sure
was golng to be worked out within a period of a few years.

We didn't know how long. We were pretty sure it wasn't going
to happen that year.

Q: Why did you feel this way, that there would be an ultimate

compromlise worked out?

Pond: The £evidence was pretty clear that while the third-party
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payment program was expanding in terms of numbers of persons
covered, the propnortionate share of the health care costs
for the aged covered by third-party paymeats was very Low, amd
vas not increasing significantly. The costs of medical care were
going ;:2; The Blue Cross plans, patticularly, were getting
into greater and greater difficulty because they had been
covering old folks, which put a very heavy burden on the rates
walch Blue Cross had to charge, and they had ultimately reached
the breaking polint. Sebidmie-most—of—us=wers—convincedrsr
I was convinced long before that thaythere was going to have to
be some infusion of tax funds into the insurance picture for
the aged because I didn't think you could charge rates that
would be adequate to cover the costs of really good xmErxgE
covdrage and be able to sell insurance. Now, there were a lot
of people who hoped that the employer contributimn to costs of
prepayment or insurance plans would take some of the burden
off the individual policy holder, whether a group plan or
otherwise, but thls was not likely to happen, and I think the
events of the years leading up to the final enactment of the
Soclal Sgeurity Act amendments of '65 demonstrated that for
thls age group at least the private sector of the economy was
elther not prepared or unable to support it in a fashion that
was adequate to remove this as an issue from a political
standpoint. Ikthink that's a fair statement of the considera-

tions.

Q: I wonder if you could perhaps identify for me some of the people
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who were also convinced of this point.

Pond: Marion Folsom, Arthur Larsen, Bob Merriam, Fleming cer-

tainly was.

Q: And of course people like Rockefeller and Javits.

Pond: Yes and Rod Perkins, Elliot Richardson--he's the lieutenant

wese
governor of Massachusetts now--wee fairly convinced of 1it.

Q: And these were the people who had studied the problem, as
you sald before. Whereas those who had not studied it and
thought about it didn't tend to see that there was being
isolated out of the pattern of private health insurance a

segment that were not being covered by 1it.

Pond: Well, you see, the numbdrs of people covered by private
health insurance had grown very substantially during the years
in which Eisenhower was President, and the proportion of

the personal health expenditures that was met in the gross

by third-party payments had been increasing. But at the same
time th¢increase in the costs of medical care continued to

rise very dramatically and particularly was this true for the
elderly, and it was Zabundantly clear that with insurance rates
golng up and the prepayment plan rates going up, the thing
would at some point in time price itself out of the market for
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the aged 1f you were expecting to use third-party payments to
cover any significant part of the costs of medical care for

the aged, which i1s two or three times as expensive as it 1is

for the population at large. I'm no economist, but I did study
engineering and I think I can count, and anybody who's reasonably
open-minded I think would have seen this. Now, the real problem
for those of us who took this point of view centered around the
question of how you handled a government program, and a lot

of us were concerned about moving to a state medicine plan.

4 lot of us were concerred about golng to a national health
insurance plan for the total population, and we were trying
really to i1solate the segment of the population that was most

1n need and find a way for the government, using 1ts taxing
powers, to help meet that need. And I think that the plan that
Mr. Flemlng put forth, the Javits plan, the Forand bill and
other bills were all reasonable and responsible bills. It

was a question of which way you went, and it seems to me for
thoughtful people it's the way you always ultimately begin to

narrow down your range of choices so that you can make a de-

cision.

Q: Yes. One thing that strikes me about thlis period is that
you were 3ingularly ineffectual--and I don't mear this as

a criticism but as a matter of historical fact, and 1t's prob-
ably, if anything, a criticism of the people you talked to,
but you didn't succeed in convincing the Republican party

and enough of the Democrats at that time, because of the
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complexion of the Congress, that this was something where there
was a need and where inevitably something would be enacted and
it vould therefore be politic to enact something more along
in tune with the philosophy of the Republican party at that
tinme.

Pond: Well, take, if you will, some of the factors that g0
into framing a party position by the Republican party. Recog-
nize that in the Republican party the executives of corporations
lapge and small have played an important role. This was par-
tlcularly true of the health insurance business. Many of the
executives in the health insurance business were very active
Republicans. They were convinced, I believe--I always try to
give them credit for it--that there was no need for a tax-
supported health insurance scheme for any part of the popula-
tlon except the very poor. They had no trouble with that.
Around the country the Republican party 1s divided. The
Javlits wing and people like that are not numerous. A Cliff Case
and a Jack Javits and a Saltonstall, Ken Keating, Rockefeller and
some of that group are not typical of the rank snd file. Very
many Republicans are convinced that the government should stay
out of areas of activity which Presumably can be handled from
the private sector. And there's a very sizable conviction in
the insurance industry that they can do the job, given a

chance. I always thought they were stupid to oppose the re-

insurance bill because this would have provided a mechanism=--at
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least the one we put up the second time in '55 instead of
'54-«for experimentation and ultimate involvement of the govern-
ment, of course using general revenues, in paying the extra
costs that would be involved in insuring old people at a cost
they could afford to pay. There was a whole theory to the re-
insurance proposal.

Now, some of us hoped that the reinsurance plan would
pan out to work effectively. An awful lot of people at the
time said it was a fraud, a delusion, that it couldn't get
anywhere. But the insurance industry even opposed this. We
had a hell of a time getting wlitnesses even from among our
friends who worked with us in the early winter of '54 in
drafting the bill to come down and testify. Now, there were
others like Marion Folsom who were convincedfhat this wasn't
going to work, it was Just the wrong way to go at 1t, and that
somehow or other we had to get off the hook. I think I talked
about 1t the last time we were togekher. But within this
framework of "Republicans" you had a large number who thought
that nothing should be done. You had some who thought something
ought to be done but hoped you didn't have to do it right away.
There were some who thought 1t would be good politics to come
up with a proposal that at least would be one that the Republicans
could point to mumx with some pride. There were others who
felt that something had to be done and that the Republicans

ought to come forward with a proposal that was a responsible
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one and one that could be looked upon not only by Republicans
but by Democrats as well as a reasonable solution to a very
difficult problem. But I would say that the group who took
thls last position that I mentioned was far outnumbered around
the countryside, and there really wasn't time... If you think
of 1t, you can't get an idea like this across to the American
people in short order. Look how long it took, in fact, to

get any health insurance legislation through Congress going
way back to the '30s and before.

Q: And don't you think, too, that when it comes to selling

ldeas, 1t would be very difficult to sell a program that wx=mx
involved subtle and complex differences or technical differences
from the one finally proposed by the Demoerats in the King-
Anderson bill or the Forand bill; that it's easy to use the
slogan "health insurance under Social Security." Social Sécurity

has some meaning.

Pond: Soclal Security is understood by every old person in

the United States. They either get it or they don't get 1it.

Most of them get it. Most of them rely on it to pay for most

of their groceries and their rent and their clothing and enter-
tainment and the like. This is easy for them to understand.

It's a regular system. They pay for i1t and they expect it as

their right and due. But anything that is reasonably complicated--

and I must confess that the Republican alternative was
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complicated--is very hard to describe.

Q: And it's hard to explain the advantages of such a program

in a way that has meaning for the average voter.

Pond: That 1s correct.

Q: Only somebody who was in politics understands the issues
1nvolved and the relationships between governmental units and
the different kinds of financing mechanisms available and so
on.

I had the lmpression also that both the insurance companies
and the AMA at this time were convinced that not only was there
no need, but that they could defeat any proposal for health

lnsurance under Social Security.

Pond: In 1960 this was clear. They could. There was no question.

They knew they had the votes.

Q: They believed they had the votes in 1960 and they believed
they ultimately could defeat it, too.

Pond: They knew they had the votes in ?he Ways and Means
Committee, and that was the key. If‘ieu got out of the Ways
and Means Committee, 1t was a goner as far as the opposition
was concerned. But they had them. And it was clear on several
voles that were taken on the Forand bill in executive session

that the opposition had the votes.
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Q: But what I'm driving at, though, is not just in 1960 but
in a general way in 1957, '58, '59, through this whole period
in question here, the principal opponents of the Social Security
approach didn't feel any necessity for compromising,for finding

some diddle ground.

Pond: Oh, no. They thought that would be a weakness.

Q: And they thought there was no necessity to do so because
they thought they could defeat the Forand type of approach.

Pond: Right. I personally believe that if there hand't been

a Goldwater in 1964, 1t would have been very difffcult to get &
health care bill for the aged through in 1965. Several of us
felt that when the fight in 1960 was over, that the issue would
be a lively one but not resolved for eight or ten years. As

a matter of fact, I bet a friend of mine four bits the day

that fight ended in the special session £that the issue was
done untll at least 1968 and probably 1970, but 1968 was my
cut-off line and I paid him the 50 cents in 1965. But the people
who were most strongly opposed and most actively opposed, (a)
knew they had the votes as of 1960, and (b) were apparently
convinced, although I never could understand how they could

be certain that they would retain enough opposition through the
next severaliyears to beat it. I felt that there was ultimately
going to be legislation--it was a matter of time--and some kind
of a solution would be found, but what it would be I didn't

know. I'm speaking from memory here, but I've thought about it
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a lot over the years.

Q: To move on with the chronology then, how did things develop
in the spring after this proposal was introduced in the Ways

and Means Committee?

Pond: I think from the very beginning it was clear that the
approach that Mr. Fleming was espousing didn't have a prayer
of getting out of committee. He had hoped, I think, tb have
found some middle ground with 1t, but he Just kept plugglng
away, responding to questions, of which there were hordes.
Meanwhile, there was a good deal of interest in the press
about it, but ultimately the people who were most responsible
in the Ways and Means Committee worked out an alternative,
a complete alternative. It Zdidn't deal with health insurance
at all.

Q: How do you Fexplain the interest of the press in this?
Why were they so interested?

Pond: Primarily because the people who were pushing the Forand
blll had developed a good deal of support. There was an in-
cregsing lnterest among the aged. Organized labor was very
active. There were many speeches being made around the country-
slde. It was an election year, and it was an issue that

gffected an awful lot of people; so that there was a great deal

of interest.

Q: Do you think also that it was an issue that could easily
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be recognized as one that was going to be a contest?

Pond: I think probably this was true.

Q: And that a conflict is the kind of thing that always

reads well in the press.

Pond: That's right.

Q: Were you involved now in the action on the Senate floor
that year?

Pond: Not directly. I didn't sit on the floor.

Q: But were you involved in the Javits b1i11?

Pond: Yes.

Q: Can you recall any of the developments with that bil11l?

Pond: Not clearly enough to be able to give you anything
definitive. A Tellow by the gfﬁ:yff Allen Lesser, whose name

I may have mentioned to you by—fe¥, who is now in the Office

of Education, was the principal staff guy for Semator #Javits
working on this. The Senator himself put an awful lot of

tlme on 1t and worked very hard. We provided him with technical
help. We had a couple of people sit on the floor the day of
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the debate. But I personally didn't. I was in the gallery
that day. That's about all I can recall of it.

Q: Can you describe for me, though, the feeling on the Senate
floor at that time? Do you have any impression of the character

of the debate and the vote in 1960°?

Pond: Frankly I don't remember it. The one thing I do remember
1s that there were mobs wandering into and out of the gallery.
There were just literally mobs. I had 2 specilal pass and this
was no problem for me, but I can remember the immense lines

in the Senate wing of the Gapitol leading to the gallery.

Q: A lot of old folks?

Pond: 01d folks, young folks, all sorts of folks--tourists.
They could sit for 20 minutes and then they had to get up and

go out. It was Just a steady stream of them.

Q: Do you suppose part of the interest was due to the fact
that thexsx both Presidential candidates were involved?

Pond: This may have contributed. I would suspect it did.

And particularly I would suspect 1t was because Jack Kennedy was

there.

Q: Wasn't Nixon on the floor at the time?
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Pond: He presided.

Q: So that in a sense it was a battle between the two Presi-

dential candidates.

Pond: Yes. AAt that time it was touch and go. I was in my

office when the final vote was taken.

Q: The vote on the Javits bill.

M‘ rectedhion 18 Py it wse a S
Pond: F-eewlé—remember-whrether-it wzs the Javits bITT=eor the >
Kennedy bill. I had a call before the roll call and was told
that 1t was not goling to pass. I remember going and telling
the_éécretary and he wanted to know where I got my information.

I actually don't remember. I had a call from the cloak room
and 1t was said that the nose count was such that it would not
pass, and 1t didn't. But apparently the majority leader had
elther miscounted or hadn't gotten the full count. Apparently
the majority leader until the very late head count wasn't sure
whether it was going to be pulled through or not. My recol-
lection 1s they missed by three votes.

Q: It was 49 to 44.

Moving on then to 1961, I have been told that you were
involved in the drafting of the King-Anderson bill. Is that

correct?
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. Pond: Not in detail. My only contribution, as far as I can
recall, i1s a somewhat long, but I think maybe for the record
worth-reporting story. I mentioned to you earlier that during
1960 I was the acting special assistant health and medical.
Mr. Fleming had wanted me to reslgn my commission and take
thls as an appointment, which v&aﬁma -\ff:{tsiii]i- ig‘i:%}gaﬁ," x if:ﬁ\'&‘m
I didn't want to do. But anyway I Ltayed the hey didn't.agpend
pPRt—ir o $pecia1 stistant (ﬁealth and Madica]). And during the
perlod after President Kennedy had been elected, there was
a movement on the part of President Eise ower to avoid the
debacle that happened when he came 1n,'\:o provide for an orderly
tzansition. Three or four of us in the'mm«\&Jc %.’a *Hu. Secretary
‘ were deslgnated to work with Governor Ribicoff, snd about a week
or ten days before the inauguration I told Secretary Fleming
that I thought if Gowernor Ribicoff wanted to come in and have
Sure M\J
an office and, stdff, we could work 1t out because I had = sulte
with a nice office and some girls. Fleming made this offer
to him. Ribicoff ceme in. I didn't know him from fm Adam.
He kmew me--about de--because I was a native of Connecticut.
A lot of peoplei%lked to him about me. And during the day
or two before he took office as Secretary, there were some
discussions about the development of the administration bill
on health care for the aged. Well, I got into these meetings.
I think some of the new people weren't very pleased to have one

of us old China hands there, but I recall making a very strong

‘ pitch... Wilbur Cohen and others were there talking about the

R
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Forand¥ bill and things that ought to be dome to 1t.
Q: Do you recall which others or any others?

Pond: I think Bob Myers, the actuary of the Social Security
Administratioh, was there--I'm not sure. I think Bob Ball
was there, but I'm not sure. Wilbur was there.ﬁﬁzﬁzg'Willcox
I think was there. He was going to be general counsel. Reg
Connally, who's now assoclate general counsel, was there, uamd.
Rufus Miles.

But I had been identified by a lot of these people as
belng too close to the last administration in its health
insurance proposals. Buzylht any rate, I invited myself in
to one of these meetings. And I remember they were talking
about first dollar cost payment or deductible, and I made a
hell of a piBch on the deductible thing in terms of what the
actual cost to the government would be. And this apparently
at thefime made a very deep impression on Ribicoff. I've always
felt that this contributed in part--I'm sure it didn't contribute
totally--to the idea of a deductible that finally omxxmixk
came into the King-Anderson proposal because there was nobody
else there who puggfga;his at all. The social work typesall
believe in first/dmg payments. Most of the experts from the

health insurance business believe in first dollar payments.

But 1t was clear to me that they weren't going to have a lot
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of money to play with and that on the basis of the experience
we"d had in working up our own administration proposal, we
recognized that you could save substantial amounts of tax funds

and provide greater benefits if you had a deductible.
Q: Do you recall Bob Myers reaction to this? Would he have

reacted to it &t the time?

Pond: But 1s a very straightforward actuary. I've been told
by insurance executives that he's one of the five best actuaries
in the country. He simply states the facts, and the facts

are this. The issue is a social one.

Q: I mean did he concede your point that this was from an

actuarlial point of view a correct assdssment?
Pond: Yes. There's no question about 1it.
Q: I mean since he was at that meeting...

Pond: I don't want to be too positive he was there. I think he
was.
Q: What about Wilbur Cohen?

Pond: Wikbur was a first dollar payment fellow. He felt
very strongly, had felt it. Wilbur and I had known each other
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well for years. He took the position--he still does=--that the
presence of the deductible tends to inhibit people's using
services; and further than that, that when you're dealing
with the aged, even a $40 or $50 deductible is quite a burden.
But we thought we had worked this out reasonably equitably
the year before when we were working on the Javits bill and
on the administration proposal. We had the actuarial estimates.
But at any rate, as far as I'm concerned, the only role that
I played, if I played any--and I'm not sure; I may be taking
credlt where credit isn't due:‘fut I was fascinated when 1t

thd the Ko Adacmistvdion e‘ﬁd :or & de Yol amd o

turned out thrts—way: ristration-finally -went
cCo-\ndurancie . Mﬁ\ \UM M1
few$ls. The one thing I do recall is that ¥4 obviously made
a very deep impression on the Secretary-designate. Inci-
dentally, I was never asked back to these hcalth insurance

meetings thereafter.

Q: So that my information is not essentially correct, that

you were a party to the discussions on the development of the

so-called medimre bill.

Pond: I don't feel that I was. I was there in the Secretary's
office for two years and when asked, would express my opinion;
but I was nowhere deeply involved in this. By the time they
began to trust me--Ribicoff trusted me from the beginning...

Q: “ow do you explain this?--that Ribicoff did &dd the others
didn't.

Pond: Partly because of the fact I'm a Gonnecticut native, was
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. -\}in:::., to people in Cennecticut and known apparently favorably
whom he knows and trusts. I asked him right away whether I
should get out. He sald no, he thought I ought to stay=--he
knew all about me. He ﬁ:gi that I knew where the bodies were
buried. He handled the political side of it. All he wanted was

soneone around who knew what went on. So I Rinally...

Q: What did he mean by that crack about your knowing where the

bodies were buried?

Pond: I'd been around the Secretary's office since 1953, and I'd
been here and in Jjobs in middle management since 1948 and knew
a hell of la lot of people and knew what a lot of people stood

. for and didn't stand for and knew what ®ome of the problems were.

Q: So he wasn't referring to any particular incident or any

sl tuation.
Pond: No.
Q: What he basically meant was that you knew the terrain.

Pond: I think that was it. But as far as I'm concerned, I

hxdt made no significant contribution to the development of the

King-Anderson bill during 1961 and subsequently. If I had any-
‘ thing to do with 1t other than the incident I just recorded about

the deductible, it was in working with Jack Javits and helping him
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work out a benefits scheme that was ultimately adopted, not

intact, but the outlines are sure as hell there.

Q: On this question of deductibles, I take it that the motives
for the deductibles changed somewhat in the end, that the problem
of financing was less critical at the end when there was a more
permissive attitude about the whole thing and confidence that

the bill was going to be written. The financial fight was not
something that might end up being a negotiable point that might

be accommodated...

Pond: Well, for x percentage of payroll, you can provide, if
you limit the hospltalization, Z_number of days 1f you pay
first dollar costs; but you can provide ymiéx y + z number of

days 1f you provide for a deductible. Do I make myself clear?

Q: You do, but I'm saying that this was not a very important

consideration because they had more money to play with in '65.
Pond: I'm not sure that it wasn't an important consideration.

Q: What I'm asking you is whether or not an additional considera-
tion entered in in the final version of the bill, and that was
the question of protecting the system against overutilization/

Pond: This may well be true. I don't know.

Q: That it wasn't more a protective device rather than an economy

measure.
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Pond: I wouldn't put it as an economy measure per se. The way
I would put 1t is that you can provide a greater array of
benefits and a longer duration of benefits for an equivalent

number of dollars if you have a deductible.

Q: So 1t relates also to the kind and quality and quantity of
benefits.

Pond: That's right. I don't know what the emact facts are,

but you can paraphrase it by saylng: if you pay first dollar
costs, you could have had hospital and nursing home care but

not disgnostic and home health care services. Or you could have
had 30 days of hospital care instead of 90. Or you could have

140,
60 days of hursing home care instead of onty—£9, And this

1s actuarially demonstrable.

Q: Speaking of Ihis transitional perlod that you were talking
about, there are two questions that I'd like to ask you in
connectlon with that. Pirst of all, you referred to a debacle
when Elsenhower came in, and I wonder what you meant by that.
And secondly, I wonder if you could describe a little bit

more in detall the process of transition in 1960 and '61.

Pond: I wasn't directly involved in the transition in '53,
but I know that the new people coming in were a completely
different team, They had only one or two people==-o0ld Chins
hands--around that they were able to use and they weren't com-

fortable in using them. There was a general feeling in the
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administration--I ¥think the President particularly felt it--
that while he had some be&géing on defense and military matters,
he really didn't have much of a briefing on other things.
Andr;:h;orked hard and made the Cabinet work hard to try to
provide for an orderly transition in each Cabinet agency.

There's a book that was written about 1961 or '62 on Presidential
transitions. Have you ever read 1t? ZI can't give you the
name of the author, but it's a very interesting document.

I think it was done by somebody for the Brookings but I'm not
sure. But I think it was a pretty orderly transition in 1961.

Q: Well, can you reconstruct any of your personal involvement

in that? Do you have any reminscences about what that process

of transition involved as it related to the Department of Health,
Education and Welfare?

Pond: Yes, we tried to give the incoming Secretary a pretty
complete rundown on budget plans. We tried to glve him a pretty
complete rundown on legislative needs. There had been the Wilbur
Cohen committee, as you know, that the President had appointed
afteyhe was elected, and there had been other tasiforces.
But vwe tried to identify the current problems that would have
to be handled in one way or another.

Tvo of the group=--Rufus Miles and Reg Connally--went to
Hartford for a day in early December to talk with Governor
Ribicoff after his name had been made public by the President.

And he came down during the week between Christmas and New Years
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for a day or two and met with a group. There were fawréi Qh"“\"
us,—d—bhink, in the Pffice of the Secre_tary at the’cim% wo “f““d\'
Then he met with the commissioners, and he was able to get a
pretty good feel. FEe learns very fast. He had a pretyy good
feel about what was going on.

One thing I remember is that he was quite surprised
that all of us not only knew Wilbur Cohig--he con 1dequ£p

'obq
us that he was going to appoint him--but&had all worked with him,

Q: Do ¥ou know anything about how the appointment of Wilbur

Cohen came about?
Pond: I don't really--no.
Q: Can you recall anything else about the transition process?

Pond: Only that I got asked periodically for £airly quick
rundowns on issues which We had and which had not been resolved(
That year I was not involved in the writing of the health
messdges, The only health message since 1954 that I haven't
been deeply involved in.

Q: Including the ones beyond that--in '62 and so on. Who did
write the health message that year?

Pond: It was done in the Public Health Service under very close

supervision by the Secretary's office ky two people I think who

kept me pretty well informed about what was going on, but I had




no role to play.

Q: was Wilbur Cohen involved in thaty

rona: vua, yes, deeply. At that time Wilbur assumed I'd get moved
feo b r (n

out. When Beew Jones came in as @dpecial Mssistant(Bealth and

nedicaﬂ, he asked me to stay until we figured out whether he

and I could work together. I stayed on with him for two years.

QLMnuh .
Q: One person we haven't talked abuut here is Secretary Ptemrsg.
Last time we talked a little bit about Secretary Hobby. I sup-

pose another one was Marion Folson.

Pond: I was very close to him and still am. He's one of the

great men I've ever known.
Q: I wonder if you could describe Marion Folsom for me.

Pond: He's a relatively shy, bright, imaginative, sincere,
honest businessman with a very utrong sense of social respon-
sibility. He had been as early as the days when Franklin
Roosevelt was governor of New York at®tively engaged as a
businessman and working on social insurance,amid unemployment
compensation insurance and other social mxakXm programs. He
once told me the story of how he was turned down for an mm

appointment to the board of trustees of a bank in Rochester be-

cause he was a Soclalist, but he was as far from being a
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Soclalist as anybody I've ever known--just a plain, webéey
tough business type. He was a superb administrator. I'm sure
he was the best administrator I've ever worked with. He had
the almoxt# supernatural knack of deciding what the important
things were, figuring out which ones were those he would pay
personal attention to, finding assoclates whom he could trust
and in whom he placed confidence, delegate responsibility to
them and worry about the other first-line problems and forget
the rest of them. It Just tickled me half to death: When he
came over to HEW the summer of 1956, I had known him when he
was Under Secretary of the Treasury becamse I had been involved
in getting a federal employee health insurance program started.
He came over and I was going on 1eaveS:; three weeks, and he
told me to go ahead and take it but when I came back he wanted
me to give him a memorandum on what the important health
issues were and he would decide which ones he'd work on.
I wrote one. I didn't have it even completely typede—— had
gotten part of it typed and the rest was in longhand, and some of
10 q0 Y0 o Cabind df %.‘“ Wtugh the ol e waa bk,
1t was struck over. It was in lousy shape, He called me one
afternoon and said he had a little time, would I come in
and tell him what the important health issues were and bring
my memorandum. 6“"*‘““ QH .
So I went in. I haddk been working in the Gebimet

long enough to know that Cabinet officers are just like
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everybody else and don't give much of a damn how neat and tidy
1t 1s as long as they get the meat that they want. So I took
it in and he read it.

I at that time, and for some time before, had been
deeply concerned about the need to do something about the
radiation protection business. I recognized that thiskwas
going to grow. I had been involved years before in getting

vadio\oqrca) in I““o
-3 mo#oré&ogteai health program started for then ealth‘ﬁervice.
So on my laundry list I put this very high.
*& looked at it and snorted. He saild, "This is
ten years off. I haven't time."

So I argued with him. oCé

He said, "Well, if it's so important, then yew better
handle it."

I'll never forget it. Dave Price over at the Public
Health Service, later deputy surgeon- neral, and‘§ worried about
the radlation business from then on. Aad—heggjlisten when I
told him about it and he'd do what I asked him to do.

He'd do what we told him to do,lbut he wouldn't
the

do one darned thing more. He'd jiggle-&# every once in a
while to see whether there was still life there.

Well, this to me 1s 1llustrative of a man who will
accept a sense of responsibility but won't try to spread him-

self too thin
Arthur F&on&ng Was a phenomenon as a Cabinet officer. He
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was virtually a career publi cgervant even though he had been
a2 political appointee. He was on the Civil Service Commission
for 12 years, had worked in Washington, spent most of his life
here; and when he was appointed Secretary, he came in and put
to work a lot of the idess he had had about organizational uanakLLf
administration. He had a tendency to rely more on the career
people than he did on the political appointees that h;::;:%n
eround Zhim. He listened to both, but he put more emphasis
on the career people's opinions I think sometimes than he did
on the political people's. He was a prodigious worker, is
an enllghtened person--very bright, very energetic and very
loyal. Gee, He was as loyal to the people around him as anybody
could be. He had a very great sense of righteousness. He's
a leader in the M&thodist Church, a lay leader, and
thowsht 2 highly responsible person. He tried to do an awful
lot of things. He fel t very strongly the need to rebulld the
Republican party, wanted to work at it, was a pretty libveral
fellow and intelligent. It was fun working with him except
you worked night and ddy,day in and day out.

I had an experience once when my wlfe was being operated
or. aé:galtimore hospital. I told him the afternoon before that
I wouldn't be around the next day, that I was going over to the
hospltal to be there when she was operated on and cam;:t: the
Trecovery room. That was all right with him. It was during
rart of the health insurance business, as I recall. By some

i
strange quirk of fate e came back through my office on my way
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home from the hospital. The Secretary wanted to see me. He

said, "Allen, we've got to have a meeting. You've got to be
there. We should have had it this morning, but I knew that
Madeiane was in the hospital and I knew you couldn't be here,
so what I've done is to schedule it for eight o'clock tonight."
Well, I'd beer at the hospital since 6:30 that morning
and I was exhausted., I had one kid at home. We didn't have
a maid or a babysitter or anything. I had to go home Yand
prepare a2 meal for this k}d and be back down for the meeting
at elght o'clock that ::;;g that lasted until midnight. I'll
xgx never forget it. This exemplified him. Everybody else
®as Biscommoded simply because I wasn't there but it was
important from his standpoint that I be there, and he knew
he didn't want to disturb me while my wife was 1ln the revovery
room and so he very thoughtfully scheduled the meeting for elght
o'clock that night.

Q: Two more things quickly before we have to wind this up.
First, I'd like to ask you about the development of the Anderson-
Javits compromise and what involvement you had in that in

1962, and then the Ja¥its committee in 1963, the national

comnmittee.

Pond: On the compromige my recollection is very hazy. On the
the gna ovr

Javits committee,/talked to me about it before he set it up,

and when he was getting 1t set Pp he'd put on several people
3 WMming
that I knew... Wasn't Arthur Feemimg chalrman of that?
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Fleming called me right after he accepted the chairmanship.

He called me and told me that he badly needed a
staff director and did I have any suggestions. I saild, yes,

I had one that I thought would be tdeal for the Job. I'd

tried to hire kim when I was in the S,cretary’'s office. He was
a very knowledgeable fellow. He wanted to know BWho it was.

I said it was Howard Post. He asked me 1f I could get him,

SO0 1 proceeued Tu call piil wiliaru, aun eld siacekick of mine

from New Haven 1Ases—F -Was vice-president of the l\iﬂus“‘*‘ A‘Ncm \u\(&i.
¢ I

Hoviard ves Lorkin;l, and put 1t up to'%1“ and then talked o

howero, and Howard was gintverestea if he could break away from

the University. Bill said this would be possible’and =
Fleming finally +e naiI?iim down.

I had falrly regular contact with Howard and with Marion
Folsom and some with Fleming during the time they were working
on thls committee. This was malinly an informationeplease
thing. Part of the time I was in the Secretary's office and
later st—thet—poimt.in the OFice of Ma Sunrgeom ‘1va

Q: Vhat 1is your feeling about the purpose and the usefulness
of that committee at that time? What do you think i1t set out
to accomplish and do you think it did achieve that purpose?

Pond: I think it set out %o try to clarify the issues on how

you handle the health insurance for the aged problem® That was
the purpose of it. And it was made ip of a group of people
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who were obviously responsible citizens. It was clearly
oriented to the development of t;; Republican position that
would be viable. And I think in the final analysis it contributed
substantially to better understanding on the part of the
Congress and on the part of the public to what the issues were
and how you might go ahout resolving them. I think it made
a very great contribution. It's part and parcel of the
aemocratic process{, the development of the legislation that
ultimately is enacted.

Q: *s there anything we haven't covered that you think we
should discuss?

Pond: I don't think so. I'm currently back in on the health
insurance for the aged business oné project that hasn't seen
the light of day yet. But I'm not prepared to talk at the
moment about that.
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